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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL. APPEARANCE

St. Thomas' Episcopal church, in Canyon City is one of six so-called 
"Nevius churches" in Eastern Oregon, after the Rev. Dr. R. D. Nevius, ener­ 
getic missionary archdeacon of Eastern Oregon who was responsible for their 
founding and building. St. Thomas is a small example of the Jacobean or 
"Stick Style," built in 1876 from plans supplied by the Foreign and Domestic 
Missionary Society of the Episcopal Church..

The building is oriented east to west in the traditional manner with 
the altar at the east end, and is Lrshaped in plan; the nave and sanctuary 
forming one leg measuring about 20 x 30 feet, and a small wing on the south 
side measuring about 12 x 12 feet and containing an office/vestry farming 
the other. TWO chimneys with, corbelled caps, one on the south wing stradd­ 
ling the ridge and one in the, north, slope of the nave at the west end pen­ 
etrate the steeply pitched shingled gable roof. The eaves project slightly 
With rafters exposed, A gabled bellcote is set atop the west wall on the 
north, side. Each of the three bays of the nave contains a sash window with 
a triangular pointed transom window. Door and window openings in the wing 
are similarly detailed. The extended vestibule contains a short flight of 
steps within a pointedr-arched opening. Old photographs indicate that this 
opening originally had no doors. There is a stained glass equilateral tri- 
segmental window in the west wall above the vestibule. Exterior walls are 
covered with drop siding to which, an exposed bracing system is applied. 
Exposed wooden buttress posts support interior exposed roof trusses built 
up of large chamfered quartered oak members. The vestibule has board and 
batten siding, suggesting it may be a replacement or addition. The original 
masonry foundation was replaced with concrete in the 1950s. The interior 
pannelling is hand worked knotty pine? as are the hand-made pews. A small 
spring in the hill outside the east wall of the church is frequently used 
for baptisms,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

With, toe. discovery of gold £n the. early 1860§ in a canyon on the 
south side of the John Day galley in Eastern Oregon, a Boom town called 
Canyon City sprang up to all But disappear in a large confligration in 
1870, The town reBuilt and in 1874 the Key. Dr, R. D, Nevius organized 
a congregation of Episcopalians- in the Boistrous camp, Nevius, who came 
to Oregon from AlaBama, was^ an energetic missionary with the extraordinary 
aBility to enlist support from many sources charged with missionary efforts 
in the two<-thirds of the state east of the Cascade Range. He was responsir 
Ble for tne organization of many congregations and the erection of seven 
churches, all of distinctive architectural form and style. These churches 
are now; referred to as- the "Neviu^ churches. w Five of them survive Basics 
ally intact a& well as^ the lower portion of a sjxtlu It is thought that 
Nevius relied on a pattern BoolL supplied By the Foreign and Domestic Mis^ 
sionary Society of the Episcopal Church,. An Episcopal church, similar to 
St, Thomas^ is to Be found in the rural farming community of Green Springs, 
Virginia. ' ?

A lot was purchased for $130, and the cornerstone was laid in July, 
August, or September (records are unclearl of 1876 By the Rt. Rev. Benjamin 
Wistar Morris, Missionary Bishop of Oregon. The first service was held in 
the ne^r Building in July of 1877,

Friends of Bishop Morris in the Germantown, Pennsylvania area, where 
Morris was from, contriButed to St. Thomas*, providing it is thought the 
stained glass and the original reed organ. According to tradition these 
items were shipped around Cape Horn to Portland and thence to Canyon City 
By wagon.

Church, records for 1878 contain the notation, "Indian raid, great 
alarm," This; would have Been 4uring the Piute War of that year, the great­ 
est and last Indian uprising in Oregon, It is not known if the church was 
in peril at that time, But ^t, Thomas^ has survived two suBsequent fires 
which, all But destroyed Canyon City, causing one journalist to note that 
the veneraBle old structure is "Consecrated to the Lord and Baptised in 
fire." Canyon CityV second great fire was in 1898. A third in 1937 de­ 
stroyed the Building next door and left St. Thomas r scorched and Blackened, 
But standing,

(Continued)



AHen ? Alhert E. ? Protestant Episcopal Church, in the. USA, Oregon Diocese." 
Typescript from records of the Diocese of Eastern Oregon with original 
documents, Oregon State Lihrar^, microfilm 116.
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ST. THOMAS' EPISCOPAL CHURCH (CONTINUED)

2. Location

St. Thomas' Episcopal Church is located in the NW 1/4 Sec. 1, T. 14S., 
R. 31 E., of the Willamette Meridian, in Grant County, Oregon, on Lot 56 of 
Keeley's Addition to the City of Canyon City.

8. Significance

St. Thomas' has been in^continuous use since its erection and has always 
been maintained, though it has known some slender times. Today it serves all 
of sparsely populated Grant County, an area of 4,520 square miles, and the 
congregation is active.
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